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Not far from the waterfront in Milford is the Eells-Stow Hjuse. With shrubs
and bushes planted ¢lose to the house, its open lot regembles those of its
neighbors in this reesidential neighborhood. The house itself, part of which date
from the end of the 17th century, is a 2% story. gable-roofed frame dwelling. The
plan consists of a large south room and a smaller room across the entrance hall.:
To the rear 1s a lean-~to, probably added around the middle of the 18th-century,
and on the south rear, a two-story ell, built in 1880 over the lean-to and over
a smaller ell, perhaps a summer kitchen, The underpinning is of fieldstone and
there is ne cellar. Clapboards of some age cover the exterior, but there are also
remains of earlier sidings, including lath and plaster and shiplapped flush
boards. The roof has wood shingles, but because of the rather small purlins inm
the roof framing, it has been suggcsted that the house may originally have been
thatched. 1 .

Because of the irregular floor plan, the main facade is uneven, with the door
set right of center. There are two pair of windows to the left and one to the
righte These windows have simple frames and 6/6 sash, and like the plain
transcmed doorway, appear to be early 19th-century work. The most prominent
exterior features are the wide framed overhang at the gables and the plaster cove
under the jutting cornice in the front. The latter i1s a restoration based on
fragmentary remains, '

In the interior can be seen some elements of the house framing. The sills
originally projected into the front rooms, but after a fire in 1910 the floor
was raised. Im the smaller north reom, framed without a summer, can be seen a
girt of great depth, a shouldered corner post, and in one area,samples of the
studs and diagonals. The wall between this room and the lean-to behind it is buili
of fieldstone into which is set a small, shallow fireplace. Until recently there

-was a chimney above. The lean-to has a kltchen fireplace with oven, plaster walls,

plain woodwerk (partially restored by Kelly), including a dade of horizontal board:
up to the windows, and slightly flaring posts. The south reom in front has a
typical Adam-style mantel and structural members are encased and have beaded edges.
The corner post shows evidence of having once been shouldered but later trimmed
off, The chamber above has a shouldered post like the one in the north reom..

Between the two front rooms is a hall with vertical beard walls which shew
signs of having been salvaged from another building. Of great notoriety are the
stairs, in two flights with a dog-leg turn. The heaviness of the turned balusters
have caused many to date these as early 18th-century, but the restoration dixectwr
at the historical society thinks that they are later, salvage, and probably
installed at the time that the work in the south room was done, arcund 1820,
Underneath the hall is the foundation for a central stack which predated the
present chimney arrangement of two stacks, between the lean-to and each fromt room,
The ell is noew used as the residence of the museum's custodian.

Although the house has undergone considerable evelution, it retains its. eégﬁy :
appearance, especially from the front, an effect augmented by the informgl . o
landscaping. Its use as a museum has allowed the exposure of structural. mambexs,
as well a5 an opoortunity to compare material from three centuries. e

1The suggestion of thatch-poles is introduced by J. Frederick Keliy, The

Earl Domestic Architectyre of Connecticut (New York: Dover reprint ?ftgg%ﬁ ed.,¢
1561 49, since the roof may postdate the house, 1t seems doubtfu
that ch was actually used, deSpite the architectural yestige. L
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Eells-Stow house is one of the most interesting houses in Connecticut.’
As a l7th-century building, the house commands a degree of respect due to its
age alone, ,Moreover, it presents to those interested in domestic architecture
a $er%gs of mysteries regarding the dating of the various partse. 1l In the midst
of argument over the sequence of comstruction one should not lose sight of the
‘intrinsic merit of the house as a piece of histeric architecture. In its :
present form the building exhibits a fairly coherent design, and many features _
show the peculiarities which distinguish the earlier building traditionms from
the work done in the middle of the 18th century. The shouldered posts and
remarkably large girts and diagonals which are exposed in the north room typify
the heavy framing of the 17th century. The marked overhang at the gable and the
sharp projection of the cornice seem more extreme than in later work, aad the
plastered cove contributes to the early appearance. These details, some of
which probably date from about 1720, are the more interesting in that later
18th-century material 1s represented by the framing and woodwork in the lean-to
and the 19th century in the beaded casing of beams and the Federalist mantel,

The house was built sometime between 1679 and 1689 by Samuel Eells, & lecal
magistrate. The most i1llustrious owners were Captain Stephen Stow and Ppeebeve
Baldwin Stow. Tegether they nursed Revolutionsry war prisoners who had contractec
smallpox, until Captain Stew himself died of the disease. The architectural
value of this house is complemented by its important associations with the -
American Revolution,

1Part of the problem is that at no time has all the house's fabric been.
exposed to ipvestigators so theories: have been based on partial evidence. Isham
and Brown (1900) argued that the south room was built first with an’'end chimney,
with the north room an early additiom. Kelly, on the other hand, theorized;that-
the whole house was built at once (except the 1880 ell), implying that the lack .
of roof patching indicated the chimney placement was origimal. Raney claimed thai
siding mail-holes showed the lean-to to be an addition, while at the same. timey;
introducing the evidence that the rear upper plate was all of-a piece! Raney lso
cited the lighter framing of the north end as evidence of.the addition, but’from"
the revelatlon of the heavy girts, as well as the shouldered posts found in''beth
partg, 1t seems incorrect to claim much dissimilarity. . . iy AR

More recent investigation by the histerical society has found. the central
stack foundatiom; apparently enough (perhaps all) of the roof was replaced’ >
prevent detection. Against the evidence of the rear plate (which would indicate;
that that the whole front was constructed as a unit) is evidericé of plasterziath’.
on the exterior of the south portion only, implying the nerth was an additi@‘ -
and also that there was considerzble rebuilding of the upper parts.’ Perhaps
fu-ther research will resolve these points, c
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